WILLIAMS - SCOTT CEMETERY, 37-1

Summary Report

This is another arsenal cemetery with no individual tombstones. The first
impression upon a visit is that it must be another slave cemetery. However,
a check of historical data indicates otherwise. While older reports do relate
burials of non-slaves, that does of itself does not exclude slave burials as
well in the cemetery. The problem is the consistent assumption that lack of
tombstones indicates a slave cemetery, as opposed to the disappearance of
previously known and documented tombstones from various cemeteries.
Such is the case here.



Williams - Scott Cemetery, Redstone Arsenal, Madison Co., AL, June, 2002.

This cemetery has no grave markers. The monument in the cemetery is engraved with the name
of the cemetery and no individuals. The overall dimensions of the cemetery are about 100 ft X about 80 ft.
It has several sunken areas, but they are all rounded, so are likely to be rootball holes of felled trees.
The cemetery is located in the NW/4 of S22-T4S-R1W. It is about 200 yards east of Patton
Road, at die east end of Aerobee Road in the SE corner ofan athletic field near the Fitness Center.
Dorodiy Scott Johnson's book, CEMETERIES OF MADISON COUNTY, ALABAMA, VOL. I, 1971,
included one grave marker. That marker was for ELIZABETH D. SCOTT,

with an inscription that read: "In memory of Elizabeth D. Scott, consort of Thomas A. Scott, died
March 3rd, 1839 in die 54th year of her age." Mrs. Johnson also noted

that there were ""...numerous unmarked graves in this very old plot."



Williams - Scott Cemetery, Redstone Arsenal, Madison Co., AL, June, 2002.

(View from ofthe northwest corner of the cemetery perimeter)



(View of the western fence perimeter and entrance gate)

With the only clue to burials being that for Elizabeth Scott, “Consort {wife
who died before her husband} of Thomas A. Scott”, as reported in Mrs.
Johnson’s 1971 book, the census record was checked for Thomas A. Scott.
The 1840 census was first checked, since it was closest in time to her burial
and since only heads of households were listed by name in the 1830 census
(as well as all other censuses before 1850). However, Thomas Scott (or any
variant of his name) was not found in the 1840 census. Therefore, the 1830
census was checked for his name. The 1830 findings are shown below:



There was only one entry in the 1830 census for a Thomas A. Scott (or any
variation thereof). This census, like the 1840 census, shows numbers in “age
bracket” columns by gender. The males are listed first, then after the
heavier, dark line at the right of the 13" column, the females are listed. Only
free, white persons were given in these columns. The census form had more
columns (not shown here, to the right) for free, non-white people, meaning
Indians, free mulattoes, and free black people. The age bracket columns
were listed in the order of Males: 0 —5,5-10, 10— 15, 15 -20, 20 — 30, 30
—40, 40 - 50, 50 — 60, etc; Females: 0—5,5-10,10-15, 15 -20, 20 — 30,
30 —40, 40 — 50, etc. Accordingly, the above data shows that the household
of Thomas A. Scott had 1 male aged 20 — 30, 1 male aged 40 — 50, 1 female
aged 0 — 5, and 1 female aged 40 — 50. Since Dot Johnson’s notation stated
that the tombstone of Elizabeth Scott revealed her death date as 1839, at age
54, Elizabeth would have been born in 1785, making her 45 in 1830 when
the census was taken. Therefore, she was the female aged 40 — 50. It



likewise would seem that Thomas himself would be the male aged 40 — 50,
with probably a son aged 20 — 30 and either a daughter or granddaughter
aged 0 - 5 still at home. As shown by the extended page below, the family
owned no slaves.



The 1820 census for Madison County was lost and is not in existence today,
so it cannot be checked. Likewise, there is no 1810 census, as the area was
not a state at that time. There was a January 1809 territorial census, but
there is no entry in it for a Thomas Scott. As a last resort, the 1850 census
was also checked, and there was a Thomas A. Scott listed that seems to
approximately “fit”:

The above Thomas A. Scott was listed as age 57 in 1850. That would make
him age 37 in the 1830 census, but that record showed Thomas A. Scott as
aged 40 — 50. Still, the discrepancy is small, so it is likely that the 1850 and
the 1830 listings are for the same man. He must have been missed by the
census takers in the 1840 exercise. The Thomas Scott of 1850 is not living
in the area near the cemetery, as his is listed among known residents of the
area that is now the northern fringe of the town of Madison.
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OLD LAND RECORDS OF MADISON COUNTY, ALABAMA, by Margaret Matthews Cowart



The above “old land records” show that Richard Elliot (also often found as
“Ellett”) was the original purchaser in August of 1809 of the NW/4 of S22-
T4-R1W. In 1839 he divested his interest in the land which contains the
cemetery in favor of Archibald McDaniel. It is almost certain that Archibald
McDaniel is in fact Archibald McDonnell, who appears quite often in the
historical land transactions of the immediate area around the cemetery. A
few of the McDonnell transactions are shown below in the “INDEX TO
LANDS”:



The transitions of ownership for the NW/4 of Section 22 show that in 1867
Archibald McDonnell sold the land to Dallas J. Jones (see the Summary
Report for the Jones Cemetery, 37-5). Other owners of land in the NW/4
included Robert C. Harrison, Isaac Alexander Lanier, and Isham J. Fennell,
for times before the Civil War. However, it should also be noted that
Thomas Allen Scott purchased 40 acres in October of 1832 as the NE/4 of
the SE/4 of Section 20, Township 4, Range 1 West. This land is just over a
mile west of the cemetery in the NW/4 of Section 22. It is today found to
the west and the south of the western end of Gray Road, very near the
Landman Cemeteries.

The Landman Cemeteries were apparently used exclusively for the Landman
family, or one would expect that perhaps Thomas Scott would have buried
his wife Elizabeth there, in the nearest cemetery, since he did not bury her
on his own land. However, there is another likely explanation of the reason
that Elizabeth Scott was buried in the Williams — Scott Cemetery over a mile
further away. Note that the 2™ line of entries in the INDEX TO LANDS
above for Section 22 was for Robert and Ann C. Lanford to a Methodist
Episcopal Church in the NW/4. How Robert Lanford came to own any land
in the NW/4 of Section 22 is not shown, apparently being one of the deeds
lost to the poor recording practices of the early days. In any event, research
done while investigating the location of the Jordan’s Chapel Cemetery (and
therefore the associated Jordan’s Chapel site) revealed that the original
location of the Methodist Episcopal Church that became known as Jordan’s
Chapel was in fact on land owned by Robert Lanford. This land was in the
NW/4 of Section 22, Township 4, Range 1 West. (For exhaustive additional
detail about Jordan’s Chapel and its cemetery, see the Jordan’s Chapel
Cemetery files on the CD-ROM supplied to the Army’s Environmental
Management offices or the copy of same supplied to the Huntsville —
Madison County Public Library’s Heritage Room.)

Since the INDEX TO LANDS showed no entry for a Williams family to
have owned land in Section 22, just as there was no ownership by Thomas
A. Scott there, it brings into question why families of these names would
have used a cemetery other than on their own lands. With the establishment
of nearby community cemeteries not yet accomplished in this area in the
early 1800s, the only other reason known for “remote” burials off of a
landowner’s property was to use a church cemetery. There is no known
blood or marriage relationship between any Scott or Williams family to the
known family names that owned the land of the NW/4 of Section 22, so it
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seems pretty safe to conclude that the cemetery known today as the Williams
— Scott Cemetery was in fact the first cemetery associated with the
Methodist Episcopal Church that later moved and became Jordan’s Chapel.

The only marriage records from the on-line index published for the 1800s on
the website of the Madison County Records Center that could suggest a
possible link of families named Scott or Williams to the early owners of the
land around the cemetery are:

Scott, James Beadle, Nancy Vol. 2 p. 308 02 Jul 1819

(Abraham Beadle was not one of the owners of the land in Section 22, but he
did live nearby, as shown in the 1830 census record given earlier, where
Abraham was next door to Thomas A. Scott. It is also known that Abraham
Beadle and his kinsmen of that surname lived near the Matkin Cemetery.)
The only Williams connection to the surnames of early owners of land
around the Williams — Scott Cemetery was for a Williams bride to a Fennell
groom in 1839:

Fennell, Wyley Williams, Mahulda Vol. 4 p. 507 28 Oct 1839

In fact, the only association of the William name with the cemetery comes
from a notation by Dot Johnson in her book about the cemeteries of Madison
County (Volume I), where on page 281 she describes this cemetery. At that
point, she explained that a “... TV A map refers to this well cared for, fenced
graveyard as the Williams Cemetery, however, the only stone was that of
Mrs. Scott. There appeared to be numerous unmarked graves in this very
old plot.” In other words, there were no stones inscribed for Williams or any
surname other than Scott when Dot investigated the cemetery in the late
1960s or early 1970. The TVA map may have noted the name of the
cemetery as the “Williams Cemetery” simply due to a current owner’s name,
perhaps in the early 1900s. Of course, there may well have been tombstones
with the Williams name at some time in this cemetery, since apparently
stones have disappeared from the site through time.
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While the Methodist Episcopal Church was meeting on the Lanford land in
Section 22 in the early 1820s, it had no other known name. Therefore, there
is nothing other than the “Methodist Episcopal Church Cemetery” or the
“Lanford — MEC Cemetery” that could be suggested to more properly
replace the Williams — Scott name for the cemetery. After meeting for a
period of about 6 years on the Lanford land, the church moved to a “more
suitable” site on Bartholomew Jordan’s land. The parcel that “Batt” Jordan
deeded to the church, which thereafter became known as Jordan’s Chapel,
was located in Sections 4 and 9 of Township 4, Range 1 West. The little
cemetery that became the Chapel’s burial place and gravesite of
Bartholomew Jordan himself, is today believed to be located on the eastern
edge of the grounds of Morris Elementary School, just at the fence to the
Botanical Gardens property on the south side of Bob Wallace Avenue. The
site of the Chapel itself is thought to be on the north side of Bob Wallace
Avenue, about 200 to 300 yards north of the cemetery site. However, before
the church relocated to this area in the late 1820s, it would have likely
established a cemetery for the 6 years at its original location in Section 22,
the Robert Lanford site. When the church left the site, the cemetery
probably became a “de facto” community cemetery and continued in use. It
is considered very likely that what is called the Williams — Scott Cemetery
was originally the Methodist Episcopal Church Cemetery, and not a single
family cemetery at all.

Prepared by John P. Rankin, September 6, 2005

(Digital photos of the deeds for the Lanford and the Jordan lands to the
Methodist Episcopal Church are shown below for reference.)
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Madison Co. AL Deed Book K, page 314: Balt Jordan to Methodist Episcopal Church (Trustees).
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